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Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

Directors’ report
for the year ended 31 December 2014

The Board of Directors is hereby presenting its annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group and the Company for the year ended 31¢t day of December 2014.

Principal activities
The principal activity of the Company is to hold assets for the Group. As from November 2014, the
Company also acts as the financing arm of the Group.

The principal activities of the Group mainly relate to the manufacture of terrazzo, stone, marble
and granite. The Group extended its operations to the retail of clothing apparel. The Group also
owns two hotels in the North of Malta - Huli Hotel with an underlying Bistro and the Mavina
Hotel. The Group is also involved in the rental of property as well as property development and
resale.

Review of business
The Company registered a profit before tax of €1,521,587 during the year ended 31 December 2014
(2013: €6,434,897).

The Group registered a consolidated profit before tax of €1,951,746 during the year ended 31
December 2014 (2013: €6,619,757). The result for the year includes the Group’s share of the
associates’ profits or losses.

Performance

The increase in turnover and rental income of €823,395 for the Group did not translate into a
proportional increase in operating profit. Finance cost for the year amounted to €1,089,216 (2013:
€835,885) also as a result of the additional financing earmarked for the projects outlined below.
The EBITDA decreased to 10% (2013: 46.61%). The upgrading and modernisation of the
manufacturing plant targeted for the end of 2015 is intended to cater for further planned increases
in revenue and to bring about improvement in efficiencies.

Income Generation

The Group has for the last ten years focused on stone, marble and granite. The main showroom
space in Mosta is being extended by circa 20% and further complimentary products have been
added to the existing lines to enable the Group to provide complete flooring and cladding
solutions.

Given the Group’s and Company’s financing structure and the positive net assets position attained
by the Group and the Company by the end of the current year, the directors consider the Group's
and Company’s state of affairs as at the close of the financial year to be satisfactory.

Bond Issue

In November 2014, the Company issued a Bond for €30,000,000. The purpose of the Bond issue
was generally threefold, namely: to repay most of the bank borrowings, to finance two projects the
development of a retail/ office block on Group’s premises and the modernisation and upgrading of
its manufacturing plant.

As a result of the cancellation of all hypothecs by the previous financiers the Group endeavored to
rationalize its operating legal structure through a number of internal mergers, acquisitions and
reorganisations.

Outlook for financial year ending 31 December 2015

During the next two years the Group will be going through a transformation. Obsolete equipment
will be scrapped and new plant and machinery installed. The remodeled showroom will be
inaugurated in June and should place the Group in a better position to achieve increased sales
from complementary products. Sales are already picking up strongly on the local market with
exports also showing promising growth. The efficiencies resulting from the Group’s
transformation programme are expected to yield results from mid-2016.



Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

Directors’ report (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2014

The apparel section of the group is showing a marked improvement in sales, with the newly
introduced brands picking up in a linear manner.

2015 will see the final reorganisation of the legal entities through internal mergers and
acquisitions. The finance cost efficiency resulting from the Bond issue is expected also to have a
positive effect on the bottom line and give the Group the flexibility required to manage its finances
more efficiently.

The consolidation and reorganisation of the existing space at Hal Mann property released
additional space that is being leased to third parties as from May 2015. This is expected to have a
positive impact on operating margin given that the corresponding operating costs are minimal.

The Board will continue to monitor the progress of the Group’s plans and expects the
implementation of planned projects and the Group’s reorganization to translate into improved
operating margins and efficiencies.

Dividends and Reserves
The results for the year are set in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on page
13.

The Board of Directors does not propose the payment of a dividend. Retained profits carried
forward at the end of the reporting period amounted to €5,154,540 (2013: €4,397,822) for the Group
and €1,787,176 (2013: €1,919,122) for the company.

Directors
The directors of the company since the beginning of the year up to the date of this report were:

Mr. Vincent Vella - Chairman

Mr. Martin Vella - Director and Chief Executive Officer - Appointed CEO on 20 February 2015
Dr. Arthur Salomone - Non-executive director - Appointed on 24 June 2014

Mr. William Van Buren - Appointed on 24 June 2014

Mr. Mark Vella - Director

Mr. Joseph Vella - Director



Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities for the financial statements

The Companies Act Cap. 386 of the Laws of Malta requires the Directors of Hal Mann Vella Group plc to
prepare annual financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and the Company as at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss for the
year in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Union.

In preparing such financial statements, the Directors are required to:
- adopt the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and the Company
will continue in business;

- select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently from one accounting year to another;
- make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
- account for income and charges relating to the accounting year on the accruals basis.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Group and the Company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, Cap. 386 of the Laws of Malta. The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of errors, fraud and other irregularities.

The financial statements of Hal Mann Vella Group plc for the year ended 31 December 2014 are
included in the Annual Report 2014, which is published in hard-copy printed form and is available on
the Parent Company’s website.

The directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge:
¢ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the group and the
company as at 31 December 2014, and of the financial performance and the cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Union; and

s the annual report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business
and the position of the group and the company, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties that the group and the company face.

Going Concern Basis

After reviewing the Group’s forecasted financial statements and after making enquiries, the directors are
satisfied at the time of approving the financial statements as the Group and parent company have
adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future and therefore it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Shareholder register information pursuant to Listing Rule 5.64

- Structure of Capital

The company has an authorised share capital of €5,000,000 Ordinary Shares of €1 each and issued and
fully paid up share capital of €4,999,820 with a nominal value of €1 each. Each Ordinary Share is
entitled to 1 vote. The Ordinary Shares in the Company shall rank pari passu for all intents and
purposes at law. There are currently no different classes of Ordinary Shares in the company and
accordingly all Ordinary Shares have the same rights, voting rights and entitlements in connection with
any distribution whether of dividends or capital.



Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

- Appointment and removal of Directors

Article 55.1 of the company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association states that the Directors of the
company shall be appointed by the Members in the annual general meeting of the Company. An
election of the Directors shall take place every year. All Directors, except a managing director (if any),
shall retire from office every 3 years, but shall be eligible for re-election. The Directors shall be elected as
provided in Article 55.1.1 & 55.1.2 of the Memorandum and Articles of Association, that any Member or
number of Members who in the aggregate hold not less than 200,000 shares having voting rights in the
Company shall be entitled to nominate a fit and proper person for appointment as Directors of the
Company . In addition to the nominations that may be made by Members pursuant to the provisions of
Article 55.1.1, the Directors themselves or a committee appointed for the purpose by the Directors, may
make recommendation and nominations to the Members for the appointment of Directors at the next
following annual general meeting.

- Powers of Directors
The powers and duties of directors are outlined in the Company’s Articles of Association.

- General Meetings

The company shall in each year hold a General Meeting as its Annual General Meeting in addition to
any other meetings in that year. All general meetings other than annual general meetings shall be called
extraordinary general meetings. The Directors may convene an extraordinary general meeting
whenever they think fit. If at any time there are not sufficient Directors capable of acting to form a
quorum for a meeting of the Directors, any Director, or any two Members of the Company holding at
least 10% of the Equity Securities conferring a right to attend and vote at general meetings of the
Company, may convene an extraordinary general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which meetings may be convened by the Directors and shall give notice thereof.

A General Meeting of the company shall be called by not less than 14 days’ notice in writing. The notice
shall be exclusive of the day on which it is served or deemed to be served and of the day for which it
was given and shall specify the place, the day and the hour of the meeting, and in case of special
business, the general nature of that business, and shall be accompanied by a statement regarding the
effect and scope of any proposed resolution in respect of such special business.

Other matters

The company has nothing to report in relation to the other requirements of Listing Rules since they do
not apply to the company

Auditors
The Auditors HLB Falzon & Falzon have intimated their willingness to be reappointed. A resolution for

their reappointment will be proposed at the annual general meeting.

By order of the Board:

4
Mr. Vincent Vella - Chairman Mr. Martiry¥ella - CEO

Registered Office
The Factory,
Mosta Road,

Lija LJA 9016.

29 April 2015



Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

Corporate Governance Statement

Pursuant to the Listing Rules as issued by the Listing Authority of the Malta Financial Services
Authority, Hal Mann Vella Group plc (‘the Company’) is hereby reporting on the extent of its
own adoption of the Code of Principles of Good Corporate Governance (the Code) contained with
the Listing Rules.

Introduction

Pursuant to the Listing Rules issued by the Malta Financial Services Authority, Halmann Vella
Group p.Lc. (the “Company”) is hereby reporting on the extent of its adoption of the Code of
Principles of Good Corporate Governance (the “Principles”) with respect to the financial year
under review.

The Company become subject to the principles and to report thereon in November 2014, when its
bonds were admitted to listing and subsequent trading on the Malta Stock Exchange. Accordingly
this is this first report of the Company on this matter and only covers the period November-
December 2014.

The Company acknowledges that although the Code does not dictate or prescribe mandatory
rules, compliance with the principles of good corporate governance recommended in the Code is
in the best interests of the Company, its shareholders and other stakeholders.

The Company has only issued debt securities which have been admitted to trading on the Malta
Stock Exchange accordingly it is exempt from reporting on the matters prescribed in Listing Rules
5.97.1 to 5.97.3, 5.97.6 and 5.97.7 in this corporate governance statement (the “Statement”). It is in
the light of this exemption afforded to the Company that the directors are herein reporting on the
corporate governance of the Company.

General

Good corporate governance is the responsibility of the Board of Directors of the Company (the
“Board”) as a whole, and has been and remains a priority for the Company. In deciding on the
most appropriate manner in which to implement the Code, the Board took cognisance of the
Company’s size, nature and operations, and formulated the view that the adoption of certain
mechanisms and structures which may be suitable for companies with extensive operations may
not be appropriate for the Company. The limitations of size and scope of operations inevitably
impact on the structures required to implement the Code, without however diluting the
effectiveness thereof.

The Board considers that, to the extent otherwise disclosed herein, the Company has generally
been in compliance with the Principles throughout the year under review.

This Statement shall now set out the structures and processes in place within the Company and
how these effectively achieve the goals set out in the Code for the period under review. For this
purpose, this Statement will make reference to the pertinent principles of the Code and then set
out the manner in which the Board considers that these have been adhered to.

For the avoidance of doubt, reference in this Statement to compliance with the principles of the
Code means compliance with the Code’s main principles and the Code provisions.



Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

Corporate Governance Statement (continued)

Compliance with the Code
Principles One to Five

Principles One to Five of the Code deal fundamentally with the role of the Board and of the
directors.

The directors believe that for the period under review the Company has generally complied with
the requirements for each of these principles. Further information in this respect is provided
hereunder.

Principle One
The directors report that for the period under review, the directors have provided the necessary
leadership in the overall direction of the Company and have performed their responsibilities for
the efficient and smooth running of the Company with honesty, competence and integrity.

Principle Two
In compliance with the provisions of this Principle, the functions of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer (the “CEQO") of the Company are segregated.

Principle Three
The Board is composed of 6 members, with 3 executive and 3 non-executive directors, 2 of which
are independent from the Group. It is responsible for the overall long term strategy and general
policies of the Company, of monitoring the Company’s systems of control and financial reporting;
and that it communicates effectively with the market as and when necessary.

The Director of Finance also attends board meetings this giving the directors immediate access to
the information on the Company’s financial position and systems. This also ensures that the CEO
and the Director of Finance, who are the persons responsible for the implementation of the
strategies devised by the Board, have the ability to inter-act with the board on an on-going basis.

The Board of Directors consists of the following;:
The officers who served during the current year are as follows:

Mr. Vincent Vella - Chairman

Mr. Martin Vella - Director and Chief Executive Officer

Dr Arthur Galea Salomone - Non Executive Director appointed 24 June 2014
Mr. William Van Buren - Non Executive Director appointed 24 June 2014
Mr. Mark Vella - Director

Mr. Joe Vella - Director

Dr Louis de Gabriele - Company Secretary

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association, the appointment of
directors to the Board is exclusively reserved to the Company’s shareholders, except in so far as
appointment is made by the Board to fill a casual vacancy, which appointment would be valid
until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company following such an
appointment. In terms of the Articles of Association a director shall hold office for a period of three
years from the date of his appointment,

Dr Arthur Galea Salomone and Mr William Van Buren are considered by the Board to be
independent non-executive members of the Board.
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Corporate Governance Statement (continued)

Principle Four

The Board acknowledges its statutory mandate to conduct the administration and management of
the Company. The Board, in fulfilling this mandate and discharging its duty of stewardship of the
Company, assumes responsibility for the Company’s strategy and decisions with respect to the
issue, servicing and redemption of its bonds in issue, and for monitoring that its operations are in
conformity with its commitments towards bondholders, shareholders, and all relevant laws and
regulations. The Board is also responsible for ensuring that the Company establishes and operates
effective internal control and management information systems and that it communicates
effectively with the market.

The executive officers of the Company may be asked to attend board meetings or general meetings
of the Company, although they do not have the right to vote thereat until such time as they are
also appointed to the Board. The Directors may entrust to and confer upon the Chief Executive any
of the powers exercisable by them upon such terms and conditions and with such restrictions as
they may think fit, and either collaterally with or to the exclusion of their own powers, and may
from time to time revoke, withdraw, alter or vary all or any of such powers.

Principle Five
The directors meet regularly, principally to review the financial performance of the Company. The
Directors are notified of forthcoming meetings by the Company Secretary with the issue of an
agenda and supporting board papers, which are circulated in advance of the meeting. The Board
did not hold any meeting during the period under review.

Principle Six
Principle Six of the Code deals with information and professional development
The Directors believe that for the in the brief period under review the Company has not had the
opportunity to conduct any professional development efforts, but intends to do so in 2015.

Principle Seven
Principle Seven of the Code deals with evaluation of the Board's performance
In view of the limited period under review and the fact that no meetings of the board took place
during the month under review there is nothing to report with respect to this principle.

Principle Eight

Principle Eight A of the Code deals with the establishinent of a remuneration committee for the
Company aimed at developing policies on remuneration for directors and senior executives and
devising appropriate remuneration packages.

In view of the size and type of operation of the Company, the Board does not consider the
Company to require the setting up of a remuneration committee, and the Board itself carries out
the functions of the remuneration committee specified in, and in accordance with, Principle Eight
A of the Code.

The Board hereby makes the following Remuneration Statement:

The Board confirms that there have been no changes in the Company’s remuneration policy
during the year under review and the Company does not intend to effect any changes in its
remuneration policy for the following financial year.

The maximum annual aggregate emoluments that may be paid to the Directors is, pursuant to the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, approved by the shareholders in general
meeting.

The Board is composed exclusively of executive and non-executive directors. The determination of
remuneration arrangements for board members is a reserved matter for the Board as a whole.
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Corporate Governance Statement (continued)

During the period under review, Mr. Martin Vella, Mr. Mark Vella and Mr. Joe Vella each held an
indefinite full-time contract of service with Hal Mann International Ltd, Hal Mann Vella Ltd and
Mavina Holiday Complex Ltd.

The remuneration policy for directors has been consistent since inception; no director (including
the chairman) is entitled to profit sharing, share options or pension benefits. There is no linkage
between the remuneration and the performance of directors. A fixed honorarium is payable at
each financial year to the non-executive directors.

For the financial year under review the aggregate remuneration of the directors of the Company
was as follows:

Fixed remuneration from Company nil

Fixed remuneration from Subsidiaries €103,596

Principle Eight B of the Code deals with the formal and transparent procedure for the
appointinent of directors.

In view of the size and type of operation of the Company, the Board does not consider the
Company to require the setting up of a nomination committee. Reference is also made to the
information provided under the subheading ‘Principle Three” above.

Principle Nine
Principle Nine deals with relations with shareholders and with the market
Pursuant to the company’s statutory obligations in terms of the Companies Act (Cap. 386 of the
Laws of Malta) and the Listing Rules issued by the Malta Financial Services Authority, the Annual
Report and Financial Statements, the election of directors and approval of directors” fees, the
appointment of the auditors and the authorisation of the directors to set the auditors’ fees, and
other special business, are proposed and approved at the Company’s Annual General Meeting.

With respect to the Company’s bondholders and the market in general, during the period under
review, there was no need to issue any company announcements to the market.

Principle Ten
Principle Ten deals with institutional shareholders
The directors are of the view that this Principle is not applicable to the Company.

Principle Eleven

Principle Eleven deals with conflicts of interest and the principle that directors should always act
in the best interests of the Company

All of the directors of the Company save for Mr Vincent Vella, Dr Arthur Galea Salomone and Mr
William Van Buren are officers of the Company. Mr Vincent Vella as well as the other executive
directors have a direct or indirect beneficial interest in the share capital of the company, and as
such are susceptible to conflicts arising between the potentially diverging interests of the
shareholders and the Company. During the period under review, no private interests or duties
unrelated to the Company were disclosed by the directors which were or could have been likely to
place any of them in conflict with any interests in, or duties towards, the Company.



Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

Corporate Governance Statement (continued)

The Audit Committee has the task to ensure that any potential conflicts of interest are resolved in
the best interests of the Company. Furthermore, in accordance with the provisions of article 145 of
the Companies Act (Cap. 386 of the Laws of Malta), every Director who is in any way, whether
directly or indirectly, interested in a contract or proposed contract with the Company is under the
duty to fully declare his interest in the relevant transaction to the Board at the first possible
opportunity and he will not be entitled to vote on matters relating to the proposed transaction and
only parties who do not have any conflict in considering the matter will participate in the
consideration of the proposed transaction .

Principle Twelve
Principle Twelve encourages directors of listed companies to adhere to accepted principles of
corporate social responsibility
The Company seeks to adhere to sound Principles of Corporate Social Responsibility in its
management practices, and is committed to enhance the quality of life of all stakeholders and of
the employees of the Company and the Group.

The Board is mindful of the environment and its responsibility within the community in which it
operates. To this end the Group has taken initiatives such as; investment in renewable energy;
implementation of eater management systems within its operations and manufacturing companies
to curtail waste and better manage the use of water.

Furthermore, the Group also seeks to minimise waste by seeking to deploy what are by products
of its manufacturing, in its terrazzo line ensuring a cheaper product complimentary to its social
policy of reducing waste.

In carrying on its business the Group is fully aware and at the forefront to preserving the
environment and continuously review its policies aimed at respecting the environment and
encouraging social responsibility and accountability.

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee’s primary objective is to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities: in
dealing with issues of risk, control and governance; and review the financial reporting processes,
financial policies and internal control structure. During the short period under review, the Audit
Committee did not conduct any meetings

Although the Audit Committee is set up at the level of the Company its main tasks are also related
to the activities of the subsidiaries and operational companies.

The Board has set formal terms of establishment and the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee that establish its composition, role and function, the parameters of its remit as well as
the basis for the processes that it is required to comply with. The Audit Committee is a sub-
committee of the Board and is directly responsible and accountable to the Board. The Board
reserves the right to change these terms of reference from time to time.

Furthermore, the Audit Committee has the role and function of scrutinising and evaluating any
proposed transaction to be entered into by the Company and a related party, to ensure that the
execution of any such transaction was at arm’s length and on a commercial basis and ultimately in
the best interests of the Company.

The Audit Committee is composed of 3 non-executive directors:

E Mr, Vincent Vella - Chairman
] Dr. Arthur Galea Salomone - Member
. Mr. William Van Buren - Member
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Corporate Governance Statement (continued)

Mr. William Van Buren is a non-executive director and a qualified accountant, who the Board
considers as independent and competent in accounting as required in terms of the Listing Rules.

Internal Control

The Board is ultimately responsible for the Company’s system of internal controls and for
reviewing its effectiveness. The Directors are aware that internal control systems are designed to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against normal business risks.

During the period under review the Company operated a system of internal controls which
provided reasonable assurance of effective and efficient operations covering all controls, including
financial and operational controls and compliance with laws and regulations. Processes are in
place for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks facing the Company.

Other key features of the system of internal control adopted by the Company in respect of its own
internal control as well as the control of its Subsidiary and Affiliate are as follows:

Organization
The board of directors of each Subsidiary regularly reports to the Board of the Company.

Risk identification

The board of directors, with the assistance of the Management team, is responsible for the
identification and evaluation of key risks applicable to the areas of business in which the Company
and its subsidiaries are involved. These risks are assessed on a continual basis.

Information and communication

Periodic strategic reviews which include consideration of long-term financial projections and the
evaluation of business alternatives are regularly convened by the Board. Regular budgets are
prepared and performance against these plans is actively monitored and reported to the Board.

In conclusion, the Board considers that the Company has generally been in compliance with the
Principles throughout the period under review as befits a company of this size and nature. Non-
compliance with the principles and the reasons therefor have been identified above.

Approved by the Board on 29 April 2015 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Vincent Vella‘-: Chairman Mr. M%{ Vella - CEO

10
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HLB Falzon & Falzon

Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditors' Report
to the shareholders of Hal Mann Vella Group plc

Report on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014

We have audited the accompanying consolidated and stand-alone parent company financial
statements of Hal Mann Vella Group plc, set on pages 13 to 67, which comprise the consolidated and
parent company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated and
parent company statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements

As described in the Directors” Report on page 1 to 5, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and the requirements of the
Companies Act, Cap. 386 of the Laws of Malta, and for such internal consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements :
e give a true and fair view of the financial position of the group and the parent company as of
31 December 2014 and of their financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union; and
e have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, Cap.

386 of the Laws of Malta.

11



Hal Mann Vella Group plc

(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)
Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditors' Report (continued)
to the shareholders of Hal Mann Vella Group plc

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Report on the statement of compliance with the Principles of Good Corporate Governance

The Listing Rules issued by the Malta Listing Authority require the directors to prepare and include in
their annual report a Corporate Governance Statement providing an explanation of the extent to which
they have adopted the Code of Principles of Good Corporate Governance and the effective measures
that they have taken to ensure compliance with these principles.

The Listing Rule 5.98 requires the auditor to include a report on the Corporate Governance Statement
prepared by the directors.

We read the Corporate Governance Statement and consider the implications for our report if we
become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements
included in the annual report. Our responsibilities do not extend to considering whether this
statement is consistent with any other information included in the annual report.

We are not required to perform additional work and we do not consider whether the Board’s
statements on internal control included in the Corporate Governance Statement cover all risks and
controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s corporate governance procedures or
its risk and control procedures.

In our opinion, the Corporate Governance Statement set out on pages 6 to 10 has been properly
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules issued by the Malta Listing
Authority.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We also have responsibilities under the Companies Act, Cap. 386 of the Laws of Malta, to report to you
if in our opinion:

- the information given in the Directors’ Report is not consistent with the financial statements;

- adequate accounting records have not been kept;

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records;

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit;

- if certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made in the financial
statements, giving the required particulars in our report.

Under the Listing Rules, to review the statement made by the directors, set out on pages 1 to 5, that the
business is a going concern together with supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary.

We have nothing to report to you in respect of these responsibilities.

HL zon & Falzon
Certified Public Accountants

29 April 2015

12, Casa Floriani, Pietro Floriani Street, Floriana, FRN 1060 Malta. 31/4, Main Gate Street, Victoria VCT 1344, Gozo .
Tel: +(356) 21 233026, 21 239671, 21 230234 Fax: + (356) 21 239113  E-mail: info@hlbff.com

HLB Falzon & Falzon is a member of International, A world-wide organisation of accounting firms and business advisers.
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc

(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2014

Note

Revenue
Cost of sales 6

Gross profit
Rental income

Distribution and selling costs
Administrative expenses
Amortisation of goodwill
Other operating charges
Other operating income

NN

Operating (loss)/profit

Changes in fair value of investment
property

Share of profits in joint ventures
Dividends receivable

Interest receivable and similar income
Income from acquisition of shares of
subsidiary

Finance costs

Fair value change in financial assets
designated at fair value through
profit or loss

Write off of amount payable to
related underaking

Profit before tax
Income tax expense 8

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Earnings per share (cents) 22

The Group The Company
Current 2013 Current 2013
€ € €
13,731,758 13,003,043 e .
(11,535,493)  (9,391,743) - -
2,196,265 3,611,300 - -
247,331 152,651 354,197 227,593
(261,032) (107,716) - -
(2,308,558)  (3,012,249) (80,030) (14,940)
(10,477) (7,920) - -
(6,818) (449) - -
72,259 78,916 - -
(71,030) 714,533 274,167 212,653
2,773,489 5,946,000 1,554,356 5,946,000
126,787 778,582 - -
= = - 335,383
18,825 1,437 17:325 2
- 15,090 - -
(1,089,216) (835,885) (436,428) (59,141)
112,167 - 112,167 -
80,724 - - =
1,951,746 6,619,757 1,521,587 6,434,897
86,672 (780,081) (309,657) (840,502)
2,038,418 5,839,676 1,211,930 5,594,395
2,038,418 5,839,676 1,211,930 5,594,395
40.77 116.80 24.33 111.89

The notes on page 21 - 67 form part of these financial statements
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

Statements of Financial Position

as at 31 December 2014

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant & equipment
Intangible assets
Investment in subsidiaries
Interest in joint-ventures
Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity financial assets
Other non-current financial assets
Investment property
Goodwill

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Property for resale

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Total assets

Note

10
11
13
14
14
14
15

16
17
26

The Group The Company
Current 2013 Current 2013
€ € € €
29,245,580 26,086,215 - -
49,827 47,518 - -
- - 2,952,196 1,590,895
2,561,521 2,622,128 168,752 189,514
200 200 200 200
101,648 135,858 - -
10,937,700 1,088,018 26,614,535 3,937,458
12,752,713 11,580,956 21,870,520 18,746,000
64,450 64,443 - -
55,713,639 41,625,336 51,606,203 24,464,067
5,999,706 4,491,225 - -
4,181,509 3,512,449 2,142,351 929,217
10,628,255 10,427,022 1,434,828 895,230
763,949 494,382 231,860 5,937
21,573,419 18,925,078 3,809,039 1,830,384
77,287,058 60,550,414 55,415,242 26,294,451
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

Statements of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2014

The Group The Company
Current 2013 Current 2013
€ € € €

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Issued capital 21 4,999,820 4,999,820 4,999,820 4,999,820
Revaluation reserve on property,

plant and equipment 23 19,332,004 18,028,542 - -
Unrealised fair value gain i

reserve - - 9,863,431 8,519,555
Capital redemption reserve 25 47,852 47,852 - =
Incentives and benefits reserves 26 604,060 604,060 - -
Retained earnings 5,154,540 4,397,822 1,787,176 1,919,122
Total equity 30,138,276 28,078,096 16,650,427 15,438,497
Non-current liabilities

Long-term borrowings 18 37,043,488 6,697,909 34,930,000 6,962,451
Trade and other payables 19 368,512 - 368,512

Deferred taxation 20 3,654,161 3,776,139 2,460,000 2,249,520
Total non-current liabilities 41,066,161 10,474,048 37,758,512 9,211,971
Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings 18 612,301 15,194,078 - 1,253,403
Trade and other payables 19 5,375,403 6,612,222 889,659 215,201
Current taxation due 8 94,917 191,970 116,644 175,379
Total current liabilities 6,082,621 21,998,270 1,006,303 1,643,983
Total liabilities 47,148,782 32,472,318 38,764,815 10,855,954
Total equity and liabilities 77,287,058 60,550,414 55,415,242 26,294,451

The notes on pages 21— 67 form part of these financial statements.

The financial statements set out on pages 13 to 67 were approved and authorized for issue by
and signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Vin(‘gnt Vella - Chairman Mr. MartinVella - CEO
29 April 2015
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc

(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Balance as at 1 January 2013
Opening balance

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Transfer from revaluation reserve on
property, plant and equipment to
investment property

Net transfer of fair value gain on
investment property, net of deferred tax

Total comprehensive income for the
year, net of tax

Transactions with owners,
recorded directly in equity

Issue of share capital

Total contribution by owners

Balance as at 31 December 2013

Balance as at 1 January 2014
Opening balance

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Net transfer of fair value gain on
investment property, net of deferred tax
Total comprehensive income for the
year, net of tax

Balance as at 31 December 2014

The Company
Revaluation
reserve on
property, plant Unrealised
Issued and fair value Retained
capital equipment  gainreserve earnings Total
€ € € € €

4,631 8,282,264 - 1,557,207 9,844,102
- - - 5,594,395 5,594,395
- (8,282,264) 8,282,264 - =
- - 5,232,480 (5,232,480) -

- (8,282,264) 13,514,744 361,915 5,594,395
4,995,189 - (4995189 - -
4,995,189 - (4,995,189) - -
4,999,820 - 8,519,555 1,919,122 15,438,497
4,999,820 - 8,519,555 1,919,122 15,438,497
- - - 1,211,930 1,211,930

- - 1,343,876 (1,343,876) -

- - 1,343,876 (131,946) 1,211,930
4,999,820 - 9,863,431 1,787,176 16,650,427
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

Statements of Cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Increase in fair value of
investment property
Share of profit in joint venture
Depreciation
Provision for exchange
fluctuations
Amortisation of intangible fixed
assets
Increase in fair value of financial
assets designated through profit
or loss
Dividends receivable
Finance income
Finance costs
Working capital changes:
Increase in inventories
Decrease/ (increase) in
receivables
(Decrease)/increase in payables
(Increase)/ decrease in property
for resale
Payments to related undertakings
Payments/ (receipts) from other
undertakings
Interest paid on overdraft
Other interest paid
Taxation paid
Finance costs payable to Inland
Revenue Department
Taxation refunded

Net cash (used in) / from operating
activities

Note

Group Company
Current 2013 Current 2013
€ € € €
1,951,746 6,619,757 1,521,587 6,434,897
(2,773,489)  (5,946,000) (1,554,356)  (5,946,000)
(126,787) (778,582) - -
557,409 550,360 - -
11,385 - - -
10,477 7,920 - -
(112,167) = (112,167) -
- - - (335,383)
(18,825) (1,437) (5) 2
1,089,216 833,012 436,428 58,836
(1,508,485)  (2,347,351) = =
174,077 2,459,546 (717,887) (135,164)
(457,433) (907,724) 1,042,970 (1,011)
(669,060) 878,333 (1,213,134) (300)
(62,854) (2,196) z z
(119,666) 36,336 -
(439,563) (5616,397) (119) (4,836)
(345,517) (59,163) (325,036) -
(170,947) (118,276) (58,736) (68,247)
2 3,165 - -
61,372 36,287 - -
(2,949,111) 747,590 (980,455) 2,790
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc

(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

Statements of Cash flow
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Group Company
Note Current 2013 Current 2013
€ € € €

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments to acquire property, plant

& equipment (429,332) (622,196) - -
Payments for investment property (1,573,501) (50,867) (1,570,164) -
Payments to acquire investment

subsidiary (12,786) (12,000) - -
Payments to acquire non-current
financial assets (9,035,651) (1,632) (8,817,622) (2,000)
Dividends received - - - 335,383
Advances to group undertakings - - (12,837,827) -
Advances to joint venture (19,000) (237,000) - -
Advances to other parties (2,250,000) . (2,250,000)
Payments to group undertakings - = - (624,713)
Receipts from related undertakings - 106,329 = &
Receipts from other undertakings - 419,114 - -
Receipts from disposal of other non-
current financial assets 471,345 - - -
Payments from joint venture - 97,269 - -
Balance transfer on merger (112,209) - - =
Finance income 1,468 1,574 5 2
Net cash used in investing activities (12,959,666) (299,409)  (25,475,608) (291,328)
Cash flows from financing activities o
Advances from/ (repayment of) banks loans 23,725,346 609,872 28,222,028 (29,375)
Other loans advanced 1,867,816 - 1,867,816 -
Receipts from/(payments to) group

undertakings - 160,305 (2,744,607) 2,461,121
Advances from/repayments to

related undertakings 553,951 - - (2,000)
Receipt from/ (payments to) joint

ventures 4,612,463 - (391,454) (247,126)
Payments to other undertakings (70,333) - (70,000) -
Receipts from third party - 333 - %
Advances to directors (5,048) - = -
Repayments to shareholders (5,183,987)  (2,832,367) - (1,937,677)
Interest paid on loans (361,813) (330,176) (111,273) (58,793)
Net cash from/(used in) financing
activities 25,138,395  (2,392,033) 26,772,510 186,150
Net movement in cash and cash
equivalents 9,229,618  (1,943,852) 316,447 (102,388)
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year (8,697,237)  (6,753,382) (84,587) 17,801
Cash and cash equivalents at end of
year 27 532,381  (8,697,234) 231,860 (84,587)

The notes on pages 21 to 67 form part of these financial statements.
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014

1. Corporate information

The consolidated financial statements of Hal Mann Vella Group plc and its subsidiaries
(the Group) for the year ended 31 December 2014 were authorized for issue in accordance
with a resolution of the directors on 29 April 2014. Hal Mann Vella Group plc (the
Company) is a limited liability company incorporated in Malta, under the Companies Act,
Cap. 386 of the Laws of Malta.

2. Principal accounting policies

(a) Basis of accounting and consolidation

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the measurement of investment property and financial assets at fair value and the
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, fair value gain of the investment property,
property, plant and equipment and fair value gain of financial assets and are in
accordance with the requirements of the International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union and comply with the Companies Act, Cap. 386 of the
Laws of Malta.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date when such control ceases. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company, using
consistent accounting policies. '

All intragroup balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from
intragroup transactions and dividends are eliminated in full.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not held by
the Group and are presented separately in the statement of comprehensive income and
within the equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from the
parent shareholders’ equity.

(b) Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Company. Control is the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for on the basis of the direct equity interest and
are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Income from the investment is
recognised only to the extent of distributions received by the Company from post-
acquisition profits. Distributions received in excess of such profits are regarded as a
recovery of investment and are recognised as a reduction of the cost of the investment.

(c) Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but not in control or joint control over those policies.
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

2. Principal accounting policies (continued)

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is carried on the statement of
financial position at cost plus acquisition cost plus post acquisition changes in the
company's share of net assets of the associate. Goodwill relating to the associate is
included in the carrying amount of the investment and is neither amortised nor
individually tested for impairment.

(d) Interest in joint-ventures

The Group has an interest in joint-ventures. A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. The company recognises its interest in
the joint-venture using the proportionate consolidation method. The company combines
its proportionate share of each of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the joint
venture with similar items, line by line, in its financial statements.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings are stated in the statement of financial position at its revalued
amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from those
that would be determined using fair values at the end of each reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income, which case the increase is credited to the
statement of comprehensive income to the extent of the decrease previously expensed. A
decrease in the carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such land is recognised in
statement of comprehensive income to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in
the revaluation reserve on property, plant and equipment relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Property, plant and equipment, except land and buildings, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation. A full year's depreciation charge is provided during the year
of acquisition and no depreciation charge during the year in which the asset is disposed of
or scrapped. Depreciation is calculated using the reducing balance method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Plant and machinery 10%
Tools 20%
Computer equipment 25%
Office equipment 25%
Air-conditioning equipment 16.67%
Telecommunications 25%
Exhibition stand 20%
Furniture and fittings 10%
Motor vehicles 20%
Buildings 2%
Improvements to premises 10%
Site offices 25%
Electrical installations 6.67%
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

Electrical system and fittings 20%

2. Principal accounting policies (continued)

Kitchen equipment 20%
Lift 20%
Pallets 20%
Exhibits 20%

Depreciation methods, useful life and residual values are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of comprehensive
income when the asset is derecognised.

(f) Intangible fixed assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense
on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of statement of
comprehensive income in the expense category that is consistent with the function of the
intangible assets.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised.

The Group's intangible assets comprise trade names. Trades names are being amortised on
a straight line basis over a period of 15 years to reflect their useful economic value.

(g) Other non-current financial assets

Financial assets are classified at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or, available-for-sale
financial assets as appropriate. All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value,
plus in the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial assets or financial liabilities.
The company determines the classification of its financial assets after initial recognition
and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the end of each
reporting period.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date,
which is the date that the group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

2. Principal accounting policies (continued)

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in four categories:

- Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
- Loans and receivables

- Assets held-to-maturity

- Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

This classification includes financial assets classified as those designated at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition. Financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss are initially recognised and are subsequently measured at fair value based on
quoted bid prices. Interest receivable on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss is included with interest receivable and similar income. All related realised and
unrealised gains and losses are included in trading profits in the year in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities that are not quoted in an active market. They are not
entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not classified as
'financial assets held for trading', or 'financial investment - available-for-sale' or 'financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss'. After initial measurement, loans and
receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, less allowance for impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income when the financial assets are either derecognised or impaired or
through the amortisation process.

Assets held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity financial investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities, which the group has the intention and
ability to hold to maturity. After initial measurement, held-to-maturity financial
investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR), less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the EIR. The amortization
is included in ‘Interest and similar income’ in the statement of comprehensive income. The
losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income line ‘Credit loss expense’.

If the group were to sell or reclassify more than an insignificant amount of held-to-
maturity investments before maturity (other than in certain specific circumstances), the
entire category would be tainted and would have to be reclassified as available-for-sale.
Furthermore, the group would be prohibited from classifying any financial asset as held to
maturity during the following two years.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified in any of the three other categories. After initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value with gains or
losses being recognised as a separate component of equity (other comprehensive income)
in the 'Revaluation Reserve'. When the asset is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in equity is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

2. Principal accounting policies (continued)

'Other operating income'. The losses arising from impairment of such investments are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in 'Impairment losses on financial
investments' and removed from the 'Revaluation Reserve'.

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is
determined by reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business at the end of
the reporting period except for investment in equity instruments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, which are measured at cost.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised where:

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and

- either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognized to the extent of the group’s continuing involvement in the asset.

(h) Impairment

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

The group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is evidence that a
financial asset is impaired. A financial asset is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset and the loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated.

(i) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
and settle on a net basis, to realise assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

25



Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

2. Principal accounting policies (continued)

(j) Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and is
not occupied by the group, is classified as investment property. Investment property
comprises freehold and leasehold land and buildings held under long-term operating
leases.

Investment property is measured initially at its historical cost, including related
transaction costs and borrowing costs. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Borrowing costs which are incurred for the
purpose of acquiring or constructing a qualifying investment property are capitalised as
part of its cost. Borrowing costs are capitalised while acquisition or construction is
actively underway. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is ceased once the asset is
substantially complete and is suspended. After initial recognition, investment property is
carried at fair value representing open market value determined periodically. Fair value
is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If the information is not available, the group
uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections.

These valuations are reviewed periodically by professional valuers. Investment property
that is being redeveloped for continuing use as investment property or for which the
market has become less active continues to be measured at fair value. Fair value
measurement on property under construction is only applied if the fair value is
considered to be reliably measurable. The fair value of investment property reflects,
among other things, rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions. The fair value also
reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that could be expected in respect of the

property.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred. When part of an investment property is
replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

The fair value of investment property does not reflect future capital expenditure that will
improve or enhance the property and does not reflect the related future benefits from its
future expenditure other than those a rational market participant would take into account
when determining the value of the property.

Changes in fair value are recognised in statement of comprehensive income. Investment
properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit
is expected from its disposal.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant
and equipment. Its fair value at the date of the reclassification becomes its cost for
subsequent accounting purposes. When the group decides to dispose of an investment
property without development, the group continues to treat the property as an investment
property. Similarly, if the group begins to redevelop an existing investment property for
continued future use as investment property, it remains an investment property during
the redevelopment.
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2. Principal accounting policies (continued)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property because its
use has changed, any difference resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value
of this item at the date of transfer is treated in the same way as revaluation under IAS 16.
Any resulting increase in the carrying amount of the property is recognised in statement
of comprehensive income to the extent that it reverses a previous impairment loss; with
any remaining increase recognised in other comprehensive income, directly to revaluation
surplus with equity. Any resulting decrease in the carrying amount of the property is
initially charged to other comprehensive income against any previously recognised
revaluation surplus, with any remaining decrease charged to the profit or loss. Upon the
disposal of such investment property, any surplus previously recorded in equity is
transferred to retained earnings; the transfer is not made through statement of
comprehensive income.

Part of the investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation less
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is provided for on the straight line method
in order to write off the investment property over the expected useful economic life.

A full year's depreciation charge on the investment property is provided during the year
of acquisition and no depreciation charge during the year in which the asset is disposed of
or scrapped. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives.

(k) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined on the weighted average cost method. The cost of finished goods and
work in progress comprises design costs, raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs
and related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(1) Property for resale

Property held for resale is included in the financial statements at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises the purchase price of acquiring the property and other
costs incurred to develop the property. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

(m) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in one year or less,
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

A provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor or, probability that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments
are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired.
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The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss in recognized in the statement of comprehensive income within
‘selling and distribution costs’.

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for
trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against ‘selling and distribution costs in the statement of comprehensive income.

Other receivables include, receivables created by the enterprise by providing funds
directly to a debtor and are measured at cost.

Prepayments comprise payments made in advance in respect of expenditure relating to
the subsequent financial year and accrued income is income relating to the current period,
which will not be invoiced until after the end of the current reporting period.

(n) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position are carried at face
value. For the purposes of the statement of cashflow, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash at banks and in hand.

For the purpose of the statement of cashflows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and short-term deposits as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

(o) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains
a lease if fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset(s) and
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset(s), even if that right is not explicitly
specified in an arrangement.

Leases in which the group does not transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and are
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

(p) Taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in
the statement of comprehensive income, except when it relates to items recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case it is also dealt with in
other comprehensive income or in equity, as appropriate.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted, at
the end of the reporting period. Current income tax relating to items recognised directly
in equity is recognised in equity and not in the statement of comprehensive income.
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Deferred income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the end of
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recongised for all temporary differences, except when the
deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax
asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of each reporting period.

Value Added Tax

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of Value Added Tax, except:

- where the Value Added Tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not
recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case Value Added Tax is recognised as
part of the acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

- Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of Value Added Tax included.

The net amount of Value Added Tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial
position.

(q) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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(r) Foreign currencies

Translations denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange ruling on
the dates of the transactions. Monetary receivables and payables denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Translation differences are dealt with in the statement of comprehensive income.

(s) Government grants
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in statement of comprehensive income on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose
primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the statement of financial position
and transferred to statement of comprehensive income on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in statement of comprehensive income in their period
in which they become receivable.

(t) Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(u) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (met of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest rate method.

Issue costs incurred in connection with the issue of the secured bonds include professional
fees, publicity, printing, listing, registration, underwriting, management fees, trustee fees
and other miscellaneous costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the
reporting period.

(v) Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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(w) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Group's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Group's shareholders.

(x) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of business, net of value-added tax
and discounts, where applicable. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the group and these can be measured reliably.
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Sale of goods: Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized on the transfer of the risks
and rewards of ownership which generally coincides with the date of the invoice.

Rendering of services: Revenue from the provision of services is recognized in the year in
which the services are rendered, by reference to completion of the specific transaction
assessed on the basis of the actual service provided as a proportion of the total services to
be provided.

Rental income: Rental income arising from operating leases on investment property is
accounted for on a straight line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
statement of comprehensive income due to its operating nature.

Interest income: Interest income is accounted for when it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the company and these can be
measured reliably.

Revenue from sale of property: Revenue is recognised on the date illustrated on the
contract of sale, when the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can
be measured reliably and when the group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold.

(y) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs which are incurred for the purpose of acquiring or constructing
qualifying property, plant and equipment or investment property, are capitalised as part
of its cost. Borrowing costs are capitalised while acquisition or construction is actively
underway, during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is ceased once the asset is substantially
complete and is suspended if the development of the asset is suspended. All other
borrowing costs are expensed.

(z) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

The Group measures financial instruments such as listed debt securities and non-financial
assets such as investment properties at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between the market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either (a) in the principal market for the asset or liability
or (b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure at fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value
of the investment property is disclosed in note 15.

3. Judgements in applying Accounting Policies and Key Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, or any other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are described below.

Revaluation of investment property

The Group carries its investment property at fair value, with changes in fair value being
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. The group engaged an
independent valuation specialist to assess fair value as at 23 June 2014. A valuation
method based on open market model was used.

The key assumptions used to determine the fair value of the property is provided in Note
15,
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4. Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The Group applied for the first time certain standards and amendments, which are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

The nature and the impact of each new standard and amendment is described below:

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities - Amendments to IAS 32

These amendments clarify the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right to set-
off and the criteria for non-simultaneous settlement mechanisms of clearing houses to
qualify for offsetting and is applied retrospectively. These amendments have no impact on
the Group, since it does not have any offsetting arrangements.

Impairment of assets - Amendments to IAS 36
This amendment addresses the disclosure of information about the recoverable amount of
impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal.

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle

In the 2010-2012 annual improvements cycle, the IASB issued seven amendments to six
standards, which included an amendment to IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The
amendment to IFRS 13 is effective immediately and, thus, for periods beginning at 1
January 2014, and it clarifies in the Basis for Conclusions that short-term receivables and
payables with no stated interest rates can be measured at invoice amounts when the effect
of discounting is immaterial. This amendment to IFRS 13 has no impact on the Group.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

This standard builds on existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the
determining factor in whether an entity should be included within the consolidated
financial statements of the parent company. The standard provides additional guidance
to assist in the determination of control where this is difficult to assess.

IFRS 11 Joint arrangements

This standard focuses on the rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangement
rather than its legal form. There are two types of joint arrangements: joint operations and
joint ventures. Joint operations arise where the investors have rights to the assets and
obligations for the liabilities of an arrangement. A joint operator accounts for its share of
the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. Joint ventures arise where the investors have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement; joint ventures are accounted for under the
equity method. Proportional consolidation of joint arrangements is no longer permitted.

IFRS 12 Disclosures of interests in other entities

This standard includes the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other
entities, including joint arrangements, associates, structured entities and other off balance
sheet vehicles.

Standards issued but not yet effective

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach to measuring and recognising revenue. The new revenue standard is
applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements
under [FRS. Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with early adoption permitted. The Group is
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currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new standard on the
required effective date.

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Accounting for Acquisitions of Inferests

The amendments to [FRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of
an interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a
business must apply the relevant IFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting.
The amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation is not re-
measured on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while
joint control is retained. In addition, scope exclusion has been added to IFRS 11 to specify
that the amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the
reporting entity, are under common control of the same ultimate controlling party. The
amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the
acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption
permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Group.

5. Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on its
products and services and has four reportable segments , as follows:

The Property Development and Letting segment, which carry works in the building
industry, including plumbing, electrical and construction works and to operate as turnkey
contractors. Also in this segment the group leases out offices and residential building to
third parties.

The Hospitality and Retail Outlets which is responsible for the franchise brands in Malta.
The group owns the exclusive rights to operate the franchises within Malta. The Group
owns and operates two apartment hotels.

Manufacturing, Products and General Contracting Services which includes the companies
responsible for manufacturing and exports. This segment includes specialising in the
manufacture of stone elements, arranging logistics, plant hire, deliveries, and supplies and
subcontracting work. Also coordination of orders for customers for products and services
is done.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently
with profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements.
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

6. Expenses by nature

The Group The Company

Current 2013 Current 2013

€ € € €

Depreciation 557,409 550,360 - -
Amortisation of intangible

fixed assets 10,477 7,920 - -

Auditors' remuneration 31,377 26,412 - -

Directors' salaries (note 7) 103,59 132,003 - -
Wages, salaries and social

security contribution (note 7) 2,907,382 2,865,156 - -

Other expenses 10,516,599 8,943,296 80,030 14,940

Exchange in fluctuation (4,462) (5,070) - -

As at 31 December 14,122,378 12,520,077 80,030 14,940

Auditor's fees

Fees charged by the auditor for services rendered during the financial years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013 relate to the following:

The Group The Company
Current 2013 Current 2013
€ € € €
Annual statutory audit 31,377 26,412 2,030 1,500
Tax advisory and compliance services 2,035 2,035 185 185
33,412 28,447 2,215 1,685
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7. Payroll costs and personnel information

Payroll costs for the financial years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013
comprised the following:

The Group The Company
Current 2013 Current 2013
€ € € €
Wages and salaries (including
directors’ remuneration) 2,734,669 2,777,808 - -
Social security contributions 234,343 219,351 - -
As at 31 December 2,969,012 2,997,159 - -

The average number of persons (including the directors) employed by the Group and the
Company during the financial year ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 was

as follows:
The Group The Company
Current 2013 Current 2013
Operational 210 145 : 5
Administration 47 45 - -
Distribution 19 18 - -
276 208 - -
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8. Income tax

Tax expense on profit on ordinary activities.

The Group The Company
Current 2013 Current 2013
€ € € €
Current taxation
Tax at source - (63,256) - (63,256)
Final withholding tax at 15% (138) (235) @ -
Final withholding tax at 12% - (34,200) - -
Current tax charge (12,385) (140,007) - (63,726)
Underprovision of tax in prior
years (1,021) (327) - -
(13,544) (238,025) 1) (126,982)
Consideration payable by the
company in respect of the tax
benefit, attaching to tax losses
surrendered by a subsidiary
company under the Group Relief
provision of the Income Tax Act - - (99,176) -
Deferred taxation (Note 20):
Credit/ (charge) for the year 100,216 (512,999) (210,480) (713,520)
Adjustments in respect of prior
year - (29,057) - -
Income tax expense for the year 86,672 (780,081) (309,657) (840,502)
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

8. Income tax (continued)

The Group The Company

Tax Reconciliation

Current 2013 Current 2013

€ €

Profit before tax 1,951,746 6,619,757 1,521,587 6,434,897
Income tax expense thereon 683,111 2,316,915 532,555 2,252,214
Tax effect of:
- expenses non allowed for
tax purposes (234,725) (2,001,859) 180,760 (2,055,172)
- excess of carrying amount =
over tax base 166,476 76,874 -
- income taxed at different
rates (664,021) (225,405) (614,138) (70,060)
- tax losses utilised 86,641 (1,568) - -
- unabsorbed capital
allowances (229,818) (127,078) - -
- investment tax credit (122,015) 9,136 - -
- unabsorbed tax losses (101,698) - - -
- change in the fair value of
investment property 356,776 713,520 210,480 713,520
- other - 19,546 - -
- under provision of prior
year tax charge (27,399) - = =
Income tax expense for the
year (86,672) 780,081 309,657 840,502
Current taxation

Provision for income tax has been made at the rate of 35% on the chargeable income for
the year except for investment income which is charged at the rates of 15% and 35% and
for proceeds from sale of property taxable at 12% final withholding tax.
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

8. Income tax (continued)

Taxation payable is made up as follows:

The Group The Company
Current 2013 Current 2013
€ € € €
As at 1 January 191,970 36,072 175,379 116,644
Underprovision of tax in
previous year 368 509 - -
Income tax expense 13,175 237,698 1 126,982
Tax refund 61,372 36,287 - -
Transfer from related
undertaking (3,014) - - -
263,871 310,566 175,380 243,626
Payments:
Provisional tax (1) (14,022) (1) (4,991)
Settlement tax (126,535) (18,669) (58,735) -
Final withholding tax (15%) (138) (235) - -
Final withholding tax (12%) - (34,200) - -
Capital gains tax (42,280) (51,470) - -
Tax at source - - - - (63,256)
(168,954) (118,596) (58,736) (68,247)
As at 31 December 94,917 191,970 116,644 175,379
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc

(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

The Group

The effective date of revaluation of the subsidiary’s property, plant and equipment was during

2010.

If property, plant and equipment were included in the financial statements at cost, their carrying

amounts would have been as follows:

Cost

As at1 January 2013
Additions

As at 31 December 2013

Additions
As at 31 December 2014

Depreciation

As at1 January 2013
Charge for the year

As at 31 December 2013

Charge for the year
As at 31 December 2014

Net book amount
As at 31 December 2013
As at 31 December 2014

Improvements Land and Total
to buildings buildings

€ € €

79,132 3,897,362 3,976,494

209,037 - 209,037
288,169 3,897,362 4,185,531

25,210 1,586,470 1,611,680
313,379 5,483,832 5,797,211
23,023 282,406 305,429

26,515 11,082 37,597

49,538 293,488 343,026

26,384 23,339 49,723

75,922 316,827 392,749
238,631 3,603,874 3,842,505
237,457 5,167,005 5,404,462
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc

(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

10. Intangible assets

Cost
As at1 January 2014 and 31
December 2013

Additions

As at 31 December 2014
Amortisation

As at1 January 2013
Charge for the year

As at1 January 2014
Charge for the year

As at 31 December 2014

Net book amount
As at 31 December 2013

As at 31 December 2014

Trade names
The Group
€

118,798
12,786

131,584

63,360
7,920

71,280
10477

81,757

47,518

49,827
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

11. Investment in subsidiaries

The Company

Current 2013
€ €

Cost
As at1 January 1,590,895 1,590,895
Additions 1,544,390 -
Transfer to other undertakings (183,089) -
As at 31 December 2,952,196 1,590,895

As at 31 December 2014, the company held the following equity interest:

Undertakings / Registered Number, class and Percentage
Office nominal value of issued
of shares held shares
held
Mavina Holiday Complex Ltd 2,998 Ordinary shares 99.93%
Triq il-Fliegu, of €2.329373 each
St. Paul’s Bay SPB 1403 fully paid up

The company is engaged in the operation of a holiday complex.

Sudvel Limited 500 Ordinary shares 100%
Hal Mann Vella, The Factory, of €2.329373 each
Mosta Road, fully paid up
Lija LJA 9016

The company is principally engaged in holding business of a finance and acts as a Guarantor to
the Bond issuer namely Hal Mann Vella Group ple.

Hal Mann International Ltd 1,000,000 Ordinary shares 100%
Mosta Road, of €1 each
Lija, LJA 9016 fully paid up

The company is engaged in manufacturing and assembling chinaware, glass and other related
products and undertaking contracts to manufacture and lay all kinds of tiles and to purchase
materials required for the manufacturing activity of the company.

On 24 November 2014 it was resolved that Hal Mann Industries Limited be amalgamated into
Hal Mann International Limited in terms of the provision of article 358 of the Companies Act,
Cap. 386 of the Laws of Malta. Hal Mann International Limited succeeds to all assets, rights,
liabilities and obligations of Hal Mann Industries Limited.

Hal Mann Properties Ltd 101,000 Ordinary shares 99.99%
Mosta Road, of €2.329373 each
Lija, LJA 9016 fully paid up

The company is engaged in dealing in movable and immovable property.
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

Vinmar Limited 1,500 Ordinary shares 100%
Hal Mann, The Factory, of €1 each
Mosta Road, Lija LJA 9016 fully paid up

The company is engaged in dealing in movable and immovable property.

Hal Mann (Letting) Ltd 99,999 Ordinary shares 99.99%
Hal Mann, The Factory, of €1 each
Mosta Road, fully paid up

Lija, LJA 9016

The company is engaged in dealing in immovable property.

Hal Mann Vella Ltd, 429,300 Ordinary shares 100%
Hal Mann, The Factory, of €2.329373 each,
Mosta Road, fully paid up

Lija, LJA 9016

The company is engaged in transportation on land, delivery of all matters relating to the
construction industry and related, complimentary, retail of terrazzo, marble, granite and turnkey
projects or incidental activities.

On 24 November 2014 it was resolved that Hal Mann Services Ltd be amalgamated into Hal
Mann Vella Ltd in terms of the provision of article 358 of the Companies Act, Cap. 386 of the
Laws of Malta. Hal Mann Vella Ltd succeeds to all assets, rights, liabilities and obligations of Hal
Mann Services Ltd.

SMG Mode Ltd, 559,480 Ordinary shares 100%
Hal Mann, The Factory, of €1 each,
Mosta Road, : fully paid up

Lija, LJA 9016

The company is engaged in operating retail outlets, specialising in apparel and related items
under franchise arrangements.

12. Investment in associate

Current 2013
€ €

Cost
As at 1 January 2,329 2,329
Provision for impairment of investment (2,329) (2,329)

As at 31 December . -

The Group holds 1,000 Ordinary shares of €2.329373 each, representing 20% shareholding
of the Ordinary share capital of Hal Mann Projects Limited, a company registered in Malta
with its registered address at Hal Mann Vella Group plc, Naxxar Road, Iklin, IKL 9020.
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

13. Interest in joint-ventures

The Group The Company

Current € Current €
Cost
As at 1 January 2,622,128 2,112,042 189,514 187,514
Addition - 3,632 = =
Share of profits 154,464 778,979 - =
Share of losses (27,677) (398) - -
Dividends received - (272,127) = F
Transfer of shares to group
undertakings (187,394) - (187,394) -
Transfer of shares from
group undertaking 166,632 2,000
As at 31 December 2,561,521 2,622,128 168,752 189,514

As at 31 December 2014, the group held the following equity interest:

Undertaking/Registered Office Number, class Percentage of
and nominal value issued shares
of shares held held
Joint ventures:
Madliena Ridge Limited, 3,000 Ordinary shares 50%
36/38, of €50 each
Triq I-Ispiera, fully paid
Swieqi

The company is engaged in dealing in immovable property

Hal Mann Holdings Ltd, 600 “Y” Ordinary shares 50%
Hal Mann Showroom, of €2.329373 each

Naxxar Road, 20% paid up

Lija IKL 9020

The company is engaged in subscribing for, take, purchase or otherwise acquire and hold
shares or other interests in, or securities of any other company, solely in the name and on
behalf of the company. It was also involved in leasing or renting buildings and any other

works in the building industry.

HMK International Ltd, 15,000 ‘B’ Ordinary shares

The Factory, of €1 each 50%
Mosta Road, fully paid

Lija LJA 9016

The company is engaged in the importation, supply, selling and/or assembly of
prefabricated structures and material relating to prefabricated structures. The company
also trades in building materials and acts as a turnkey contractor.
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc
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Hal Mann Solar Limited 2,000 'A' Ordinary shares, 50%
2/3, Triq Tal-Balal, of €1 each,

Xwieki, fully paid up

L/o Gharghur

The company is engaged in financing, designing, supplying, installing, operating and
maintaining photovoltaic systems in Malta or elsewhere.

MAC Investments Limited, 1,600 Ordinary shares,
52/1, of €1 each, 33.33%
Tigne Seafront, Sliema fully paid up

The company is engaged in the catering industry.

The aggregate capital and reserves as at the end of the under mentioned accounting period
and the results for the said period of the undertaking were as follows:

Aggregate
Accounting capital and
Undertaking period reserves Profit/(Loss)
€ €
Madliena Ridge Limited 31.12.2014 2,116,515 301,494
HMK International Limited 31.12.2014 95,977 7,433
Hal Mann Holdings Limited 31.12.2013 3,049,653 7,194
Hal Mann Solar Limited 31.12.2014 (51,353) (51,353)
MAC Investments Limited 31.12.2012 3,607 (1,193)
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc

(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

14. Other non-current financial assets

The Group The Company
Current 2013 Current 2013
€ € € €
Loans and receivables:
Loans to group undertaking - - 16,775,285 3,937,458
Loans to joint ventures 1,098,450 1,088,018 - -
Loans to other undertaking 2,250,000 - 2,250,000 -
Total loans and receivables 3,348,450 1,088,018 19,025,285 3,937,458
Available-for-sale investments:
Unquoted equity shares 1,367 1,367 1,367 1,367
Provision for impairment of
investments (1,167) (1,167) (1,167) (1,167)
200 200 200 200
Financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss
Listed debt securities 7,589,250 - 7,589,250 -
Held-to-maturity investments:
Bank term deposit account 101,648 135,858
Total other non-current financial
assets 11,039,548 1,148,604 26,614,735 3,937,658

Loans and receivables

The loans to joint ventures are interest free, unsecured and have no fixed repayment date.

Available-for-sale investment

Available-for-sale investment consist of investment in shares of a non-listed company,

which is valued at cost.

Held-to-maturity investment

Held-to-maturity investment comprise of bank term deposit account. This investment is

measured at cost.
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

14. Other non-current financial assets (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss related to listed debt
securities issued by local companies and Government of Malta with different interest rates
and maturing in different years. The local bonds are not rated by credit rating agencies
and therefore are classified as unrated bonds. The credit quality of listed debt securities
issued by the Government of Malta that were neither past due nor impaired was assessed
by reference to external credit ratings about counterparty default rates which as at 31
December 2014 were rated A-2 (Standard & Poor’s Investors Service). These financial
assets are all denominated in Euro.

Current 2013
€ €
Summary of movements during the year:
As at1 January - -
Acquisitions 7477,083 -
Movement in fair value 112,167 -
As at 31 December 7,589,250 -
15. Investment property
The Group
Current 2013
, € €
Fair value/Cost
As at 1 January 11,644,044 9,172,460
Additions 3,337 50,867
Fair value change on investment property 1,219,133 -
Transfer from property for resale (note 16) - 2,420,717
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note 9) (16,306) -
As at 31 December 12,850,208 11,644,044
Depreciation
As at1 January 2014 63,088 14,348
Charge for the year 49,081 48,740
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note 9) (14,674)
As at 31 December 2014 97,495 63,088
Net book value
As at 1 January 11,580,956 9,158,112
As at 31 December 12,752,713 11,580,956
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

15. Investment property (continued)

The Group

Investment property with a net book value of €2,326,559 as at 31 December 2014 is
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation. The fair value of this investment property
is €2,420,717 (2013: €2,420,717). This property is leased out by the company under an
operating lease to third party.

As at the end of the reporting period, the estimated market value of the investment
property held by one of the subsidiaries is €4,608,000. The market value is based on an
architect’s valuation as of 13 October 2008.

Fair value measurement of the Group's investment properties
P prop

As at 31 December 2014, the fair value of the Company's investment property has been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on 23 June 2014 by Messrs TBA periti,
independent valuers not related to the Company. Messrs TBA periti have appropriate
recognised professional qualifications and experience in the location and category of the
property being valued. The fair value was determined on the basis of open market value
taking cognisance of the specific location of the properties, their size and development
potential.

Fair value hierarchy disclosures for investment property are disclosed in Note 28.

If the investment property was stated on the historical cost basis, the amounts would be as

follows:
Current 2013
. € €
As at 31 December
Cost 620,028 620,028
Accumulated depreciation (115,867) (103,466)
504,161 516,562

Part of the investment property is subject to a special hypothec to secure the bond issue by
the parent undertaking for the sum of €30,000,000 and relative payment of the annual
coupon rate as well as the repayment of the capital.

Part of this property is leased out by the company under an annual operating lease to third
parties in accordance to its lease agreement and part of the property is leased out its
subsidiaries. Consequently, as disclosed in Note 9, the property leased out to its
subsidiaries is classified and measured in the group financial statements as property, plant
and equipment in accordance with the requirements of IAS 16.
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc

(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

16. Property for resale

Cost:
As at 1 January

Over provision of accruals

in the previous years

Additions

Capitalisation of borrowing costs
Disposals

Transfer to investment property
(note 15)

As at 31 December

The Group The Company
Current 2013 Current 2013
€ € € €
3,512,449 6,811,499 929,217 928,917
(50,000) - - -
1,214,438 11,030 1,213,134 300
2,588 13,814 - -
(497,966) (903,177) - -
- (2/420,717) = .
4,181,509 3,512,449 2,142,351 929,217
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

17. Trade and other receivables

The Group The Company
Current 2013 Current 2013
€ € € €
Trade receivables 4,002,345 4,583,257 - 70,000
Other receivables 2,412,865 2,381,083 - -
Other advances 794,567 - 794,567 -
Work in progress 1,617,679 1,147,081 - -
Amounts owed by group
undertakings - - 17,116,495 4,609,177
Amounts owed by joint
venture undertakings 194,126 - 179,060 =
Amounts owed by associate
undertakings 38,100 - - -
Amounts owed by related
undertakings 16,302 50,786 16,302 16,302
Amounts owed by other
undertakings 70,000 - 70,000 -
Amounts owed by
shareholders 56,000 - -
Indirect taxation 37,438 102,855 22,482 -
Advance deposits 533,945 615,783 - 126,196
Accrued income and
prepayments _ 854,888 1,546,177 108,043 11,009

10,628,255 10,427,022 18,306,949 4,832,684
Less non-current portion

Amounts owed by group
undertakings -

(16,872,121)  (3,937,454)

Current trade and other
receivables 10,628,255 10,427,022 1,434,828 895,230

54



Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

17. Trade and other receivables (continued)

The amounts owed by group, joint venture, related and other undertakings are interest
free, unsecured and payable on demand except for an amount of €16,872,121 owed by
group undertakings which has no fixed repayment date. They result from trading
activities and from balances owed to the company.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 120 days.

As at 31 December, the aging analysis of trade receivables is, as follows:

Past due but not
impaired
Total < 30 days 30-90 days > 90 days
€ € € €
2014 €4,002,345 975,608 1,103,961 1,922,776
2013 €4,583,257 1,190,869 1,973,877 1,418,511

See note 28 on credit risk of trade receivables, which explains how the company
manages and measures credit quality of trade receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired.
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

18. Borrowings

The Group The Company
Current 2013 Current 2013
€ € € €

Amounts falling due within one
year:
Bank overdrafts (note 27) 231,568 9,191,616 - 90,524
Bank loans 380,733 6,002,462 - 1,162,879
Total short-term borrowings 612,301 15,194,078 - 1,253,403
Amounts falling due after more
than one year:
Between two and five years:
Bank loans 467,664 672,000 -
Shareholders’ loans 3,329,511 3,338,093 2,520,830 2,520,830
Amounts due to related
undertakings 260,053 888,099 - =
Amounts due to group
undertaking - - 393,242 3,466,022
Amounts due to joint ventures - 802,098 1,043,500 763,205 975,599
Amounts due to other
undertaking 14,099 : _ B
Directors’ loans - 5,048 - -
Amount due to third party 18,000 18,333 - -
Other loan 1,867,816 - 1,867,816 -
Total long-term borrowings less
than 5 years 6,759,241 5,965,073 5,545,093 6,962,451
More than five years:
5% secured bonds 30,284,247 732,836 29,384,907 -
Total long-term borrowings 37,043,488 6,697,909 34,930,000 6,962,451
Total borrowings 37,655,789 21,891,987 34,930,000 8,215,854
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Hal Mann Vella Group plc
(formerly known as Hal Mann Velsud Group Limited)

18. Borrowings (continued)

The Company
The amounts owed to group undertakings, joint venture and shareholders' loans are
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed repayment date.

The other loan bears interest at 5% is unsecured, interest free and has no repayment date.

The amount due to group undertakings, related undertakings and joint ventures,
directors” and shareholders’ loans and amounts due to third party are unsecured, interest
free and have no fixed repayment date.

The secured bonds are measured at the amount of the net proceeds adjusted for the
amortisation of the difference between the net proceeds and the redemption value of the
bonds, using effective yield method as follows:

Current 2013

€ €

Face value of the secured bonds 30,000,000 -
Issue costs 623,020 -
Accumulated amortisation (7,927) -
Closing net book amount 615,093 -
Amortised cost 29,384,907 -

By virtue of the prospectus dated 6 October 2014, the company issued 30,000,000 secured
bonds with a face value of €100 each. The secured bonds are redeemable at par (€100 for
each bond) and are due for redemption on 6 November 2024. The bonds are secured by a
first-ranking special hypothec over the company's property, which comprises the Hal
Mann Factory, showroom and adjacent land and by property owned by the Sudvel Ltd.,
pursuant to and subject to the terms and conditions in the prospectus.

The secured bonds have been admitted on the Official List of the Malta Stock Exchange on
11 November 2014. The quoted market price as at 31 December 2014 for the secured
bonds was €103.75, which in the opinion of the directors fairly represents the fair value of
these financial liabilities and which is considered to be a level valuation within the fair
value hierarchy.
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18. Borrowings (continued)

The interest rate exposure of borrowings was as follows:-

Current 2013
€ €
Total borrowings:
At fixed rates 31,252,723 -
Effective interest rates at the end of the reporting period:
Current 2013
€ €
300,000,000 secured bonds 2014 - 2024 5.2676% -
Other loan (subrogated) 5% -

The Group

The bank overdraft and bank loans bear interest ranging between 5.15% to 9.25% per
annum (2013: 3.86% to 6.75%). These facilities are secured by a general hypothec over the
group’s present and future assets, special hypothecs and guarantees over the group’s
immovable properties and by joint and several personal guarantees and pledges given by
the directors and their spouses.

The bank loan of €263,817 is repayable as follows: two year moratorium or capital
repayment, meanwhile interest is to be met on a monthly basis. This loan is repayable
thereafter in 12 equal monthly instalments of €41,667. The bank loan of €1,483,920 is to be
repaid in 168 equal monthly repayments, initially of €14,000 each, including principal and
interest, following a moratorium of twelve months.
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19. Trade and other payables

The Group The Company
Current 2013 Current 2013
€ € € €

Current liabilities
Amounts received in advance 69,959 58,628 - -
Trade payables 3,698,222 3,138,682 651,218 192,761
Other payables 32,568 50,259 5,321 2,890
Indirect taxes and social security
contributions 346,850 721,199 - 9,033
Accruals and prepaid income 1,102,152 2,461,026 233,120 10,517
Deferred income 125,652 142,228 - -
Deposit on sale of property - 40,200 - -
Total current liabilities 5,375,403 6,612,222 889,659 215,201
Non-current liabilities
Trade payables 368,512 - 368,512 -
Total non-current liabilities 368,512 - 368,512 -
Total trade and other payables 5,743,915 6,612,222 1,258,171 215,201

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled between 60 to 90 days.

Other payables are non-interest bearing.
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20. Deferred taxation

The Group The Company

Current 2013 Current 2013

€ € € €

As at1 January (3,776,139) (3,475,998)  (2,249,520) (1,536,000)
Credit/(debit) in the statement of

comprehensive income (note 8) 100,216 (542,056) (210,480) (713,520)

Tax effect on revaluation 21,762 241,915 - -

As at 31 December (3.654,161) (3,776,139)  (2,460,000) (2,249,520)

Deferred income taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability
method and are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted by the end of the reporting period. The principal tax used is 35% with the
exception of deferred taxation on the fair-valuation of non-depreciable property which is
computed on the basis applicable to disposals of immovable property, that is tax effect of
12% of the transfer value.

The balance as at 31 December represents:

The Group The Company
Current 2013 Current 2013
€ € € €
Tax effect of temporary differences ;
relating to:
Excess of capital allowances over
depreciation (138,441) (139,072) - -
Unabsorbed capital allowances 504,894 275,978 - -
Unrelieved tax losses 117,290 11,860 - -
Investment tax credits 639,557 511,438 - -
Asset revaluation (4,777 ,461) (4,436,343)  (2,460,000) (2,249,520)
(3,654,161) (3,776,139)  (2,460,000) (2,249,520)
21. Issued capital
The Group and The Company
Current 2013
€ €
Authorised:
5,000,000 Ordinary shares of €1 each 5,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid up:
4,999,820 Ordinary shares of €1 each 4,999,820 4,999,820
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22. Earnings per share

Earnings per share is based on the profit after taxation attributable to the owners of the
company divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the

year.
The Group The Company

Current 2013 Current 2013

Net profit attributable to

shareholders €2,038,418 €5,839,676  €1,211,930 €5,594,395

Weighted average number

of ordinary shares in issue

(note 21) 4,999,820 4,999,820 4,999,820 4,999,820

Earnings per share (cents) 40.77 116.80 24.23 111.89

23. Revaluation reserve on property, plant and equipment

The Group The Company
Current 2013 Current 2013
€ € € €
As at 1 January 18,028,542 17,612,781 - 8,282,264
Transfer to revaluation
reserve on investment
property - 5,232,480 - (8,282,264)

Net transfer of fair value

gain on investment

property, net of deferred

tax 1,343,876 241,915 - -
Transfer from revaluation

reserve on property, plant

and equipment to

investment property - (63,445) - -
Depreciation transfer (62,176) - - -
Deferred taxation thereon 21,762 - - -
Issue of share capital (4,995,189) - -

19,332,004 18,028,542 - -

The revaluation reserve comprises the revaluation surplus arising in the revaluation of
property, plant and equipment net of deferred taxation. This reserve is not available for
distribution.
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24. Unrealised fair value gain reserve

The Group The Company
Current 2013 Current 2013
€ € € €

Transfer from revaluation
reserve on property, plant and
equipment - - 8,519,555 8,282,264
Issue of share capital - - - (4,995,189)
Transfer from statement of
comprehensive income - - 1,343,876 5,232,480
As at 31 December - - 9,863,431 8,519,555

The unrealised fair value gains reserve represents changes in fair value of investment
property, net of deferred tax movements, which are unrealised at the end of each
reporting period. These amounts are transferred from retained earnings to this reserve
since these gains are not considered by the directors to be available for distribution. Upon
disposal of the respective investment property, realised fair value gains are transferred to
the retained earnings. The unrealised gain reserve is a non-distributable reserve.

25. Capital redemption reserve

The Group The Company
Current 2013 Current 2013
€ € € €
Reserves acquired through
subsidiary 47,852 47,852 - -
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26. Incentives and benefits reserves

The Group The Company
Current 2013 Current 2013
€ € € €
Reserves acquired through
subsidiary 604,060 604,060 - -

27. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following in the Statement of Financial Position

amounts:
The Group The Company
Current 2013 Current 2013
€ € € €
Cash at bank and in hand 763,949 494,382 231,860 5,937
Bank overdrafts (note 18) (231,568) (9,191,616) - (90,524)
532,381 (8,697,234) 231,860 (84,587)

28. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial assets comprise investment in associate undertakings,
interest in joint ventures, other non-current financial assets, trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Its principal financial liabilities comprise
trade and other payables and borrowings.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
which are summarised below.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise four types
of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk, commodity price risk and other price risk.
Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings. The Group is only
exposed to interest rate risk.
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

Except as disclosed in note 18, the Group’s borrowings are non-interest bearing.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing
activities including deposits with banks.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Group's management subject to the Group's
established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management.
Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on each individual's credit limits.
Qutstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. An impairment analysis is
performed at the end of each reporting period on an individual basis.

The Group exercises a prudent credit control policy, and accordingly, it is not subject to any
significant exposure or concentration of credit risk. Credit risk in respect of the Company’s
deposits with banks is low since such deposits are placed with local financial institution
with high quality standing on rating.

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in relation to meeting future obligations associated
with its financial liabilities. Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash and committed credit lines to ensure the availability of an adequate amount
of funding to meet the Group's obligations.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based
on contractual undiscounted payments.
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Year ended 31 December 2014

Less than 3to12 1to5

3 months months years > 5 years Tol
Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings 88,647 259,837 2,599,297 30,284,247 33,23
Trade and other payables 923,160 2,177,256 998,885 - 4,09
Shareholders' loans - - - 3,329,511 332
Financial guarantee
contracts - 1,327,300 - - 132!

1,011,807 3,764,393 3,598,182 33,613,758 41,98

Year ended 31 December 2013

Less than 3to12 1to5

3 months months years >5 years Tol
Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings 1,168,571 8,452,465 5,595,588 1,382,290 16,59
Trade and other payables 1,411,925 1.592:125 184,891 - 3,18:
Shareholders' loans - - - 3,338,093 3,33
Financial guarantee
contracts - 1,251,712 - = 1,25

2,580,496 11,296,302 5,780,479 4,720,383 24,37

Fair value risk

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents and trade and other payables and current borrowings
approximated their fair values. The fair values of other non-current financial assets and
long-term borrowings are not materially different from their carrying amounts in the
statement of financial position. The company used the following hierarchy for determining
and disclosing the fair value of investment property and financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss.

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) process in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: other techmiques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value by level of the fair value hierarchy:
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €

As at 31 December 2014
Investment property - - 32,296,674 32,296,674
Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss 7,589,250 - - 7,589,250

7,589,250 - 32,296,674 39,885,924
As at 31 December 2013
Investment property - = 27,953,021 27,953,021
Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss - - - -

- - 27,953,021 27,953,021

Capital management

Capital includes the equity attributable to the shareholders of the parent undertaking.

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains

healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to the shareholders, return capital to the shareholders or issue new

shares.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during

the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.
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29. Capital Commitments

The current factory and plant have been built over a number of years with the core plant
and line dating back to the 1970's. Various custom made additions have been made over
the years. Over the last 10 years, the company has invested in new technology to update
the cutting process with semi-automated cutting machines and the introduction of water
jet technology to cater for specialised cuts. The Board of Directors has the intention to
modernise the factory and the planned capital outlay is circa €5 million.

At 31 December 2014, the group also had commitments of €7million relating to the
development of land to create a mixed office/commercial development, with underlying
car-parking.

30. Operating Lease Commitments

Operating lease commitments - the group as lessor

The group has entered into operating leases on its investment property consisting of
certain office and manufacturing buildings. These leases have a term between 3 and 5
years. All leases include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge after a
term of 3 and 5 years as applicable.

The group also has entered into operating leases on its retail outlets, with lease terms
between 3 and 12 years.

Future minimum rental payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31
December are as follows:

Current 2013

: € €

Within one year 100,000 100,000
After one year but not more than three

years 188,333 288,333

288,333 388,333

31. Contingent liabilities
As at the end of each reporting period, the Group had guarantees given to third parties in

the normal course of business amounting to €1,340,254 (2013: €1,335,876).
32. Ultimate controlling parties

The ultimate controlling parties of the Group are Mr. Vincent Vella and Ms. Mary Vella,
both having 5.99% of the issued share capital and Mr. Joseph Vella, Mr. Paul Vella, Ms.
Miriam Schembri, Mr. Mark Vella, Mr. Martin Vella, Mr. Simon Vella and Ms. Veronica
Ciappara, who each own 12.58% of the issued share capital.

33. Comparative amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current period's
presentation.
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